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RFP No. 1-13-C075 
Compensation Consulting Services 

for the 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 
 
1. Will any costs for additional tools become Other Direct Costs (ODC's) on the 

contracts that are not already provided by the Authority?  If procured by the Authority, 
will they be subtracted from the contract ceiling? 
 
Answer:  No, items procured by the Authority will not become (ODC’s) and 
consequently have no impact on the contract ceiling.  Please refer to Statement of 
Work (SOW) and Price Schedule for cost and pricing details.       

 
2. Are there any tools to be used by the contractor that require a contractor to be onsite 

or use MWAA equipment? Or can this be accessed remotely since work to be 
performed is on the contractor site? 
 
Answer:  Onsite work is required to conduct certain job evaluation work (such as 
‘desk audits’); most work does not require on-site work at MWAA. 

 
3. If the prime is WBE and or MBE already, will this qualify for the 15% potential 

requirement MWAA is seeking in this category above the 25% LDBE requirement? 
 
Answer:  The WBE and MBE programs are separate from the LDBE program and 
therefore do not apply to the 25% LDBE requirement.  Please consult Section VIII and 
IX of the solicitation or Authority website for more information about WBE, WBE and 
LDBE programs.   

 
4. If the contract is extended to the other jurisdictions as requested in the SOW, will they 

fund the tasks they will be requesting directly and will this still be under the ceiling of 
350,000?  Can the ceiling be expanded if the additional organizations request surveys 
performed? 
 
Answer:  The Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority has no rights, 
responsibility, obligation or liability with respect to any contract entered into between 
the Contractor and the participating jurisdictions.  Please consult Section VI, Special 
Provision 01 for more details.    
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5. Will the sampling sources have to be approved by MWAA prior to their usage? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 

 
6. Is there a monthly status report requirement or only when work is actually performed? 

 
Answer:  No formal status reports are required but close continuing contact is 
expected.  A partnership between the Compensation Department and the consultant is 
the desired relationship.      

 
7. Will the contractor be allowed to market this to the other jurisdictions mentioned in 

the SOW? 
 
Answer:  The successful offeror may contact other jurisdictions per Section VI, 
Special Provision 01 of the solicitation. 
 

8. Can you provide a more detailed understanding of project timeline as it relates to both 
staff compensation surveys and job evaluations?  Are estimated milestone timetables 
available? 
 
Answer:  Timelines will be agreed upon for each approved task.  Simple job evaluation 
and job descriptions may take approximately 30 days from date of assignment, and 
more complex projects are estimated to take 90 days.   
 

9. Should we anticipate a similar annual timeline throughout the option periods 
excluding custom project task requests? 
 
Answer:  Cyclical market pay studies typically begin in June (with planning).  Then, 
data collection begins in July and results are due in readily useable form in early 
November (for some studies, such as Police, Fire and Public Safety Civilian) through 
early December or late November for others, such as Trades (blue collar) and Salaried 
(white collar).  Special market pay studies have their own very specific timelines, from 
start to finish. 
 

10. Is past similar contract information available beyond the incumbent name provided at 
pre-conference? 
 
Answer:  All relevant and applicable information required to submit a proposal is 
contained in the solicitation documents.  
 

11. Please describe the methods used, other than special periodic competitive 
marketplace studies by benchmark position, to annually adjust the pay of the 18-20 
Trade benchmark positions and the 50-54 Salaried benchmark positions that are the 
subject of the two major studies in this solicitation? Are the adjustment amounts tied 
to an outside source, such as the median salary adjustment budgets as reported in 
World at Work annual survey, or the Consumer Price Index? What has been the 
average annual pay adjustment for each group over the last 5 years?    
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Answer:  We do annual analysis of the movement of wages and prices (such as but 
not limited to ECI, CPI, PPI, Federal/private/local public pay structure and pay 
movement). 
 

12. Does MWAA have contact information for the up to 24 agencies that will be specified 
as the target population for the custom survey? What has been the response rate for 
previous custom surveys of these agencies? Will the contractor be expected to 
improve upon historical response rates? Will MWAA offer any assistance with 
identifying the right person to approach at each agency, particularly where there is 
initially no response to a request to participate in the custom survey? 
 
Answer:  Yes.  Response rate has varied.  The contractor will be expected to be 
vigorous in its attempts for participation and required to fill-in-the-gaps using LGPA 
survey data, website “looks” and other means.  The Authority will provide a list of 
agency contacts after contract award to facilitate the custom survey. 
 

13. What is the time period of performance for the contract to be awarded?  Given that the 
Authority contemplates awarding a fixed unit price indefinite quantity task contract, 
what provisions might be made should the work requested through various task 
orders over and above the two major studies identified exceed the anticipated 
contract ceiling amount of $350,000?  In other words, is this the ceiling for a period of 
performance covering one year, or multiple years? 
 
Answer:  The anticipated award date is August 2013.  See Amendment One (001) for 
change to contract ceiling language. 
 

 


